CONCILIATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE PROGRAMS

AND

PCC AIRFOLLS, LLC

PART L PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (“OFCCP”) evaluated PCC Airfoils, LLC
(“PCC Airfoils”) establishment located at 1400 Pope Drive, Douglas, Georgia. OFCCP is alleging
that PCC Airfoils was not in compliance with Executive Order 11246, as amended (E.O. 11246 or
the Executive Order), and the Vietnam Era Veterans® Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as
amended, 38 US.C. § 4212 (VEVRAA).

In the interest of resolving the alleged violations without engaging in further legal proceedings and
in exchange for sufficient and valuable consideration described in this document, OFCCP and PCC
Alrfoils enter into this Conciliation Agreement (“Apreement”) and the parties agree to all the terms
therein, The aftachments to this Agreement are deemed incorporated into this Agreement.

PART II. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

L.

In exchange for PCC Airfoils’ fulfillment of all its obligations in this Agreement, OFCCP
will not institute administrative or judicial enforcement proceedings under E.O. 11246 and/or
VEVRAA based on the violations alieged in Part IIl. However, OFCCP retains the right to
initiate legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement if PCC Airfoils violates any provision of
this Agreement, as set forth in paragraph I, below. Nothing in this Agreement precludes
OFCCP from initiating enforcement proceedings based on futare compliance evaluations or
complaint investigations. |

QOFCCP may review PCC Airfoils’ compliance with this Agreement. As part of thisteview,
OFCCP may require written reports, inspect the premises, interview witniesses, and examine
and copy documents. PCC Airfoils will permit access to its premises duringnormal business
hours for these purposes and will provide OFCCP with all hard copy or electronic reports and
documents it requests, including those specified in this Agreement,

Nothing in this Agreement relieves PCC Airfoils of its obligation to fully comply with the
requirements of E.O. 11246, Section 503, VEVRAA, their implementing regulations, or
other applicable laws requiring non-discrimination or equal employment opportunity
through affirmative action,

PCC Airfoils shall not retaliate against any potential or actual beneficiary of this Agreement
or against any person who files a complaint, who has provided information or assistance, or
who participates in any manner in any proceeding in this matter.




5. The parties understand the terms of this Agreement and enter into it voluntarily.

6. This Agreement, including its attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement and represents
the complete and final understanding of the parties, This Agreement contains all of the terms
binding the parties and it supersedes all prior written and oral negotiations and agreements.
Any modifications or amendments to this Agreement must be agreed upon in writing and
signed by all parties.

7. This Agreement becomes effective on the day it is signed by the Regional Director of the
Southeast (“Effective Date’).

8 If one or more provisions of this Agreement is deemed unlawful or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will remain in full force and effect.

This Agreement will expire sixty (60) days after PCC Airfoils submits its final progress report
required in Part VIII, below, unless OFCCP notiftes PCC Airfoils in writing before the
expiration date that PCC Airfoils has failed to fulfill all of its obligations under the
Agreement. In this instance, the Agreement is automatically extended until the date that
OFCCP determines that PCC Airfoils has met all of ifs obligations under the Agreement. '

o

10, If PCC Airfoils violates this Agreement:
a. 41 CEFR. §60-1.34 and/or 41 CF.R. 60-741.63 (2014) will govern:
1. OFCCF will send PCC Airfoils a written notice stafing the alleged violations

and summarizing any supporting evidence,

1i. The PCC Airfoils shall have 15 days from receipt of the notice to respond,
except in those cases in which such a delay would result in frreparable injury to
the employment rights of affected employees or applicants.

iti. IfPCC Airfoils is unable to demonstrate that it has not violated the Agreement,
or if OFCCP’s alleges irreparable injury, enforcement proceedings may be
initiated immediately without issuing a show cause notice or proceeding
through any other requirement. _

iv. OFCCP may seek enforcement of this Apreement itself and is not required to
present proof of any underlying violations resolved by this Agreement,

b. PCC Airfoils may be subject to the sanctions set forth in Section 209 of the Executive
Order, 41 CER. 60-1.27, 41 CER. § 60-741.66 (2014), and/or other appropriate
relief for violating this Agreement.

11. PCC Airfoils neither admits nor denies any viclation of the Executive Order or VEVRAA,
nor has there been an adjudication on the merits regarding any such violation.

12. The parties understand and agree that nothing in this Apreement is binding on other
governmental departments or agencies other than the United States Department of Labor.

13, Bach perty shall bear its own fees and expenses with respect to this matier,

14, This Agreement is limited to the facts of this cage. Neither this Agreement, nor any partof the
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negotiations that occurred in connection with this Agreement, constitutes admissible evidence
with respect to any OFCCP policy, practice or position in any lawsuit, legal proceeding,
admindstrative proceeding, compliance evaluation or audit, except for legal or administrative
proceedings concerning the enforcetnent ot interpretation of this specific Agreement.

15. All references to “days” in this Agreement, and in the Timeline included as Attachment C,
are calendar days. If any deadline for an obligation scheduled to be performed under this
Agreement falls on a weelkend or a Federal holiday, that deadline will be extended to the
next business day. :

PART III. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

1. During the period April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018, OFCCP alleges that PCC
Airfoils discriminated against womer when hiring for its Operative positions, in violation
of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1). Specifically, OFCCP found a shortfall of 18 female hires in
Operative positions, in violation of 41 CFR 60-1.4¢z)(1).!

2. During the period April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018, PCC Airfoils was in non-
compliance with preservation of personnel and employment records for a period of not less
than two years from the date of the making of the record or the personnel action invoived,
whichever oceurs later, in violation of 41 CFR § 60-1.12(a). Specifically, PCC Airfoils
failed to preserve some of its interview notes from hiring managers.

3. During the period April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018, PCC Aitfoils failed to invite
applicants to inform it whether the applicant believes that ie or she is a veteran protected
by VEVRAA, in violation of 41 CFR § 60-300.42.

4, During the period April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2818, PCC Airfoils failed to invite its
applicants for employment to voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a disability, in
violation of 41 CFR § 60-741.42.

PART IV. FINANCIAL REMEDY

1. Total Amount of Financial Remedy. PCC Airfoils will distribute $63,312.32 in back
pay plus $4,546.54 in interest for a total of $67,858.86, less deductions required by law
on the portion representing back pay only (such as federal, state and/or local taxes and
the and the employer’s and Eligible Class Members’ share of FICA and FUTA taxes) in
equal shares among all Eligible Class Members on the Final Class Members List.

2. Affected Applicants/Employees Eligible to Receive Payments, The financial remedy
will be distributed to all Affected Applicants who timely respond to the Notice Process
as explained below in Part VI, and whose eligibility is verified (hereinafter “Eligible
Recipient”). These individuals will be listed on the Finai List of Eligible Recipient
(“Final List”). The process of determining the Final List is explained below under Notice
Process.

1 PCC has since hired 18 of the affected women.
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3. Payments to Eligible Applicants. Each Eligible Recipient will be eligible for a pro-rata
share of the financial remedy. PCC Airfoils will issue checks or make electronic
paymenis fo each Eligible Applicant, along with appropriate tax reporting forms (such
as W-2 and IRS Form 1099) by the date set forth on the Timeline, OFCCP will receive
timely documentation of all payments made and any payments returned undelivered or
any checks not cashed, as set forth on the Timeline. Any check that remains uncashed
180 days after the initial date the check was mailed to the Eligible Applicant/Employee
will be void. With respect to any uncashed funds, PCC Airfoils will make a second
distribution to all Eligible Recipient who cashed their first check if the second
distribution is at least $20 to each Eligible Recipient. If the second distribution would
be less than $20 to each Eligible Recipient, the remainder will be used for additional
EFO training.

4. Tax Payments, Forms and Reporting. PCC Airfoils will pay the PCC Airfoils’ share
of social security withholdings, and any other tax payments requited by law from
additional funds separate from the financial remedy, PCC Airfoils or its agent shall mail
to each Eligible Applicant an IRS Form W-2 for that portion of the payment representing
back pay and an IRS Form 1099 for that portion of the payment representing interest,
These IRS forms will be provided to the Eligible Applicants either at the time of payment,
electronically or with the settlement checks, or at the end of the year. No Eligible
Applicant will be required to complete a W-4 or W-9 in order to receive payments under
thissettlement.

PART V. NON-EINANCIAY, RELIEF

1. Revisions to Hiring Process. PCC Airfoils will revise, in writing, the practices, policies
and procedures it nses to select applicants for Operative positions. Specifically, PCC
Airfoils will:

a. create a job description and selection process for Operatives which describes the
essential functions for each individual job; the minimum qualifications including
required skills and certifications; and the minimum criteria used in each step of the
hiring process, including any application screens, interviews, tests, credit checks,
review of criminal history, reference checks, testing, or other selection procedure;

b. ensure all policies and gualification standards are uniformly applied to all
applicants; and

c. list clearly on its recruiting materials and job postings the minimum qualifications,
including required skills and certifications

2. Self-Analysis. PCC Airfoils agrees to monitor selection rates at each step of its selection
process for positions within the Operatives category, This includes documenting the
aumber of perscns hired by sex, the number of applicants who applied by sex, and the
number of applicants by sex who participated in and passed each selection procedure
utilized, Where it is determined that a selection assessment has an adverse impact, as
defined in 41 C.F.R. 3.4D, on the hiring of applicants of a particular sex, PCC Airfoils
must consider suitable alternatives, in accordance with the Uniform Guidelines on
Employee Selection Procedures, 41 C.F.R. Part 60-3. PCC Airfoils agrees 1o maintain and
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make available to OFCCP records concerning the impact and validity of the selection
process.

3. Training.

a. Revised Selection Process: PCC Airfoils shall train all individuals involved in any
way in recruiting, selecting, or tracking applicants for Operatives on ifs revised
hiring process. The training will include instruction in the proper implementation of
the recruitment, tracking and selection procedures; neutral application of the
specified qualifications and criteria that will be used at each step in the hiring
process; procedures to be used to document the decisions made at each step in the
hiring process; and the procedures to be used to ensure that documents are retained
in accordance with 41 CF.R, 60-1.12(a) and Part 60-3,

b. Egual Employment Opportunity Obligations: PCC Airfoils will meet with
managernent and all individuals responsible for the selection process and review its
equal employment obligations and nondiscrimination policies refated to hiring.
Specific attention will be directed fo ensure no retaliation, intimidation,
interference or any other conduct that violates 41 CF.R. § 60-1.32 against female
applicants.

4, Recordkeeping. Pursuant to 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.12, PCC Airfoils will ensure its managers
properly document the results of hiring decisions made pursuant to the revised hiring
policies and procedures, and properly maintain all records on the revised policies and
procedures including any associated underlying data and information such as HRIS and
payroll data, job applications, applicant and hire data, disposition codes, and personnel
records, and any other records or data used to generate the required reports.

5. Staffing Firms. For each staffing firm that provides Operative workers to PCC Airfoils,
PCC Airfoils shall: (a) ensure that the E.O. 11246 equal opportunity clause is incorporated
by reference in its contract with such staffing firm; and (b) contact such staffing firm at
least annually to notify the staffing firm that PCC Adrfoils is an equal employment
opportunity and affirmative action employer and expects the staffing firm to ensure that it
selects workers to be assigned to PCC Airfoils without unlawful consideration of race,
color, national original, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, or veteran

staius,

6. PCC Airfoils shall comply with the requirement to have a recordkeeping system that
preserves personnel and employment records for a period of not less than two years from
the date of the making of the record or the personnel action involved, whichever occurs
later, in accordance with 41 CFR § 60-1.12(a). Specifically, PCC Airfoils will ensure
preservation of interview notes from all hiring managers.

7. PCC Airfoils shall invite applicants to inform it whether the applicant believes that he or
she is a veteran protected by VEVRAA, as required by 41 CFR § 60-300.42. Specifically,
PCC Airfails will invite applicants for employment, prior to ah offer of employment, to
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voluntatily identify as & protected veteran. Additionally, PCC Airfoils will invite
applicants for employment, after an offer of employment but before applicants begin their
job duties, to voluntarily inform it whether the applicant believes that he or she is a
protected veteran. All invitations fo self-identify as a protected veteran nmst cormply with
the requirements of 41 CFR § 60-300.42(c). PCC Aitfoils shall keep all self-identification
information confidential and maintain it in a separate data analysis file, rather than in its
personnel or medical files, in accordance with 41 CFR § 60-300.42(e).

8. PCC Airfoils shall invite both its applicants for employment, and its employees, to
voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a disability using the OMB-approved form
for this putpose (available on the OFCCP website), in accordance with 41 CFR § 60—
741.42. Specifically, PCC Airfoils will invite each of its applicants for employment, prior
to an offer of employment, to voluntarily inform it whether the applicant believes that he
or she i3 an individual with a disability, as that texm is defined in 41 CFR § 60—
741.2(g)(1)(@) or (i1). PCC Airfoils will also invite each of its applicants for employment,
after an offer of employment has been made and before the applicant begins work, to
voluntarily inform it whether the applicant believes that he or she is an individual with a
disability. In addition, during the first year it is subject to this requirement, PCC Airfoils
will invite each of its erployees to voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a
disability. PCC Airfoils shall keep all self-identification information confidential and
maintain it in a separate data analysis file, rather than in its personnel or medical files, in
accordance with 41 CFR § 60-741.42(e).

PART VL NOTICE PROCESS

1. Methods and Standards for Providing Notice

A. OFCCP and PCC Airfoils Obligations Under the Notice Process. The Notice
Process set forth in this agreement is intended to provide Affected Applcants a
meaningful opportunity to understand their rights and obligations and act on them in a
timely manner. This process includes providing notice in multiple relevant languages
to the affected workers and through multiple channels, if appropriate, and providing
technical assistance to Affected Applicants seeking information about their rights and
obligations under this Agreement. As specified in the Timeline and as otherwise
necessary to fulfill this Agreement, PCC Airfoils and OFCCP will regularly meet and
confer in person, by phone and/or by email on the Notice progess to determine how best
to carty out the Notice provisions of this Agreement, and to decide whether any
activity, deadline or document should be modified. OFCCP and PCC Airfoils agree not
to unreasonably withhold consent to reasonable modifications proposed by either party.

B. Notice Documents. PCC Airfoils will distribute Notice Documents to Affected
Applicants consistent with the sample Notice Documents contained in Attachment B,
The Notice Decuments will include a Notice, Release, and Interest Form. The Notice
Documents may also include other materials stich as standard OFCCP or U.S.
Department of Labor materials, instructions or a cover sheet, job applications, or other
information that beiter enables Affected Applicants to understand their rights and
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obligations and act on them in a timely manner. The Notice Documents will make clear
the information about the setflement is being provided by or on behalf of the U.S.
Department of Labor. As specified in the Timeline and as otherwise necessary to fuifill
this Agreement, the parties will meet and confer on any reasonable modifications of the
sample Notice Docunents or additions to the materials distributed by PCC Airfoils, if
proposed by either party. ’

. Timeline, Attachment C sefs forth the agreed Timeline for Notice and for the patties’
other obligations under this Agreement. The parties will meet and confer on any
reasonable modifications to the Timeline proposed by either party,

. Search for Affected Applicants. OFCCP shall provide PCC Airfoils with complete
contact information in its possession or its guthority fo obtain on the Affected
Applicants by the date set forth in the Timeline.

. Distribution of Mail Netice to Affected Applicants, PCC Airfoils will provide initial
notice by regular first-class mail. PCC Airfoils will send copies of all of the Notice
Documents as defined above, by first class mail fo the best available mailing address
for each Affected Applicant, by the date set forth in the Timeline. If envelopes from the
mitial mail notice are retirned with forwarding addresses, PCC Adrfoils will re-tnail the
Notice Documents within five (5) business days,

Based on the response to the initial mail notice, the parties will meet and confer bythe
date set forth in the Timeline fo assess the results of the initial mail notice and to ensure
that the second round of mzil notice maximizes the potential response rate. A second
mail notice will be sent to Affected Applicants with valid addresses where the first
notice is returned as undeliverable unless the parties agree otherwise.

. Distribution of Notice by Other Means. OFCCP may also conduct independent
efforts to communicate with Affected Applicants about this Agreement through official
U.8. Department of Labor channels and in partnership with community-based
organizations.

. Notice Deadline. The final deadline for any Affected Applicant to respond to the
notice is set forth in the Timeline, The parties will prominently display this deadline on
all materials they distribute in paper or online form regarding this Agreement, and
explain that failure to respond by this deadline will result in a forfeiture of any relief
provided by this Agreement.

. Technical Assistance, The parties will timely respond to any inquiries from Affected
Applicants using information consistent with this Agreement and the Notice
Documents and will decument all inguiries and the result. OFCCP willprovide contact
information for individuals to contact OFCCP regarding this Agreement. The parties
will prominently displey this contact information on all materials they distribute in paper
or online form regarding this Agreement. The PCC Airfoils will provide OFCCP
contact information to any Affected Applicant with questions or concerns.
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L Exchange of Information Regarding Affected Applicants. The PCC Airfoils and
OFCCP will timely exchange information regarding Affected Applicants, including
updated contact information and the results of any technical assistance provided.

I.  Fimal List of Eligible Applicants, The Final List will include al] Affected Applicants
who timely respond to the Notice by the deadline set forth in the Timeline and whose
eligibility is verified by OFCCP. The parties will establish the Final List by the date sct
forth in the Timeline, The parties will meet and confer on any cutstanding issues ot
questions regarding the Final List. Either party may ideutify potentially eligible
Applicants who may have been erroneously excluded from the originel or any
subsequent list. OFCCP shall make the final determinations of eligibility but will make
every effort to negotiate in good faith to resolve any dispute about the Final List. The
PCC Airfoils will provide to OFCCP any information necessary to determine the Final
List.

K. Documentation of Payments. Bythe deadline set forth in the Timeline, the PCC
Adrfoils will provide OFCCP with documentation record of zll payments to Eligible
Applicants, including the amounts paid, the date payment was sent, the date payment
was received or the check cashed, and any uncashed or returned checks. In the event of
a second distribution, the PCC Airfoils will provide a similar documnentation on the
second distribution,

L. PCC Airfoils’ Expenses. PCC Airfoils will pay all expenses associated with catrying
out its duties pursuant to this Section, from finds separate and apart ﬁ'om the amount
designated in this Agreement for the Settiement

PART VII. MONITORING

PCC Airfoils must submit the documents and reports described below to Disteict Ditector Miguel A.

Rivera, Jr. 2 @ dol.gov:

1. Within 90 days of this Agreement going into effect, PCC Airfoils will submit a copy of its
hiring procedures and practices and proof showing who tock the training described in Part V.

2. PCC Airfoils will submit (2) progress reports covering each 12-month period for which this
Agreement is in effect, The first progress report is due 13 months after the Agreement goes
into effect and must cover the 12-month period beginning on the Effective Date of the
Agreement. The second report must cover the successive 12-month period, and must be
submitted within 60 days afier the close of that 12-month period, PCC Airfoils will submit
the following in each progress report unless otherwise specified:

a. Documentation of monetary payments to all Eligible Applicants as specified in Part

V. The documentation must include the names of Eligible Applicants who were paid,
and, for each Eligible Applicant, the number and the amount of the payment and the
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3.

date the payment was sent to the Eligible Applicant. PCC Airfoils will provide
OFCCP with proof of payment upon request.

. Copies of all job postings used during the reporting period for the positions in the

Operatives category. OFCCP will review these documents to ensure they meet the
criteria set forth in the Agreement.

. All applicant and hiring data for the positions that are Operatives covering the 12

month period of the progress report, including the total number of applicants and
hires, sex of all applicants and hires, documentation of the position(s) applied for,

_the reasons for any non-selection, and the rate of pay offered.

. Capies of the results of self-analysis performed and an explanation of actions taken

as a result, as described in Part V.

N

. Documentation that PCC Alrfoils met ifs obligations with respect to staffing firms,

a8 described in Part V.

A copy of any E.O. 11246 AAP, Section 503, and VEVRAA narrative prepared
during the reporting period.? If PCC Airfoils was not required o implement an AAP
during the reporting petiod, it should note that in the report

PCC Airfoils will retain all recotds and data pertinent to the violations resolved by this
Agreement and/or used to prepare required reports until this Agreement expires or as long as
required by OFCCP’s regulations, whichever date occurs later.

TERMINATION DATE: This Agreement will terminate pursuant to the terms in Part I, Paragraph

9.

INTEGRATION CLAUSE: This Agreement represents the full Agreement between PCC Airfoils and
OFCCP and this Agreement supersedes any other agreements, oral or written. In signing this
Agreement, neither PCC Airfoils nor OFCCP relies upon any promise, represeniation of fact or law, or
other inducement that is not expressed in this Agreement. This Agreement may be modified only by
written agreement of the Parties affected and may not be modified by any oral agreement.

ATTACHMENTS
A, Class Member List
B. Notice Documents
a. Notice
b. Interest Form
¢. Release
C. Timeline

%'This excludes submission of data of any type, incleding by way of exemple, the profile/analysis, job groups, incumbency,
availability, goals, personnel activity, data tables, ete. :

Page 9 of 10




PART VIII. SIGNATURES

The person signing this Conciliation Agreement on behalf of PCC Airfoils, T.I.C personally warrants
that: (1) hefshe is fully authorized to do so; (2) that PCC Airfoils, LLC has entered into this Conciliation
Agreement voluntarily and with full knowledge of its effect; (3) and that execution of this Agreement
is fully binding on PCC Airfoils, LL.C. This Conciliation Agreement is hereby executed by and between
the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs and PCC Airfoils LLC.

General Managet
PCC Airfoils, LLC
Douglas, Georgia 31535-5922

DATE: _ /% o /2020

.~ Bamuel B. Maiden
£~" Regional Director- Southeast

Office of Federal Contract Cornpliance
Programs

/
DATE: 7/ 7 / 2000
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Attachment A: Class Member List

T

42.
43,
44,
45,
46,
47,
48.
49,
50.
51,
52,
53.
54,
55.
56.
57,
58,
59,
60.
61.
62.
63.
64.
65.
66.
67.
68.
69.
70.
71.
72.
73,
74,
75.
76.
78.
79,
80.
81.
82.

83.
84.
85.
86.
87.
88.
89.
90.
91.
o2,
93.
94.
93.
96.
97.
98.
g,

100,
101.
102.
103.
104.
105.
106,
107.
108.
109.
110.
111,
112,
113,
114,
115.
116.
117,
118.
119.
120.
121.
122,
123.




124,
125.
126.
127.
128,
129,
130,
131.
132,
133,
134,
135.
136.
137,
138.
139,
140.
141,
142.
143.
144,
145,
146.
147.
148.
149,
150,
151.
152.
153,
154.
155.
156.
157,
158.
159.
160,
161.
162.
163.
164,
165.
166.

167.
168.
169,
170.
¥71.
172,
L73,
174.
175.
176,
177.
178.
179
180.
181.
182,
183.
184.
185.
186.
187.
188,
189,
180.
191,
192,
193.
194,
198,
196.
197.
198.
199,
200.
201.
202,
203,
204,
205,
206.
207.
208.
209,

210.
211.
212.
213.
214,
215.
216.
217.
218,
215.
220.
221.
222.
223.
224.
225,
226.
227.
228.
229,
230.
231.
232.
233,
234,
235,
236.
237.
238,
239,
240.
241,
242,
243.
244,
245.
246,
247.
248.
249,
250.
251.
252.







425.

426,
427,

428.

429,
430.
431.
432,
433,
434,
435,

436.
437,

438,
439,
440,

441.

442,
443,

4435,
446,

447.

448.

449,

450.
451,
452.
453,
454.
453.
456.
457.
458,
459.
460.
461.
462,
463,
464,
465.
466,
467.

468,
469,
470,
471.
472.
473,
474,
475,
476,
477,
478,
479,
480.
481.
482,
483,
484,
485.
486,
487,
488.
489,
499
491,
492,
493,
494,
495,
496.
497,
498,
499,
500.
501,
502.
503,
504,
50,
506.
507.
508.
509.
510,













WHAT IS YOUR NEXT STRP?
You should read this Notice and the enclosed Interest Form.

Please do not ignore this form or throw it away, Otherwise, you could miss an opportunity to
receive money.

To be eligible for a payment , you must complete, sign, and return the following enclosed the
Interest Form to:

[Name and address for return of forms or instructions/email for electronic
submission]

DEADLINE: [INSERT specific date for First or Second Notice deadline]

You may receive some or all of these benefits only if these forms confirm that you are one of the
individuals covered by the setilement. After correct completion and submission of these forms, a
final decision will be made about your eligibility.

If you fail to return the required form by the deadline above, or if your form do not verify
your eligibility, you will not be eligible to receive any money, or any other benefits that are
available o you by the settlement.

How CAN YOU GET MORE INFORMATION? :
If you have any questions, you may contact Compliance Office: SIS =i (904) 366-

Bl or via c-mail o NI @ dol.cov. You can also visit the U.S. Department of Labor

website about this case at www.dol.gov./ofcep/eml.




Attachment B~1 Notice

You may be eligible to get money because of a legal setflement between PCC Airfoils, LL.C and the
U.S. Department of Labor.

We are writing to provide information about a legal settlement between the U.S. Department
of Labor and PCC Airfoils, LLC ("PCC dirfoils”) that may benefit you, This settlement
involves claims of discrimination in hiring, and our records show that you may be one of the
applicants covered by the settlement, While PCC Airfoils does not admit to or agree with
OFCCP’s findings, it has entered into a settlement in the interest of resolving the alleged findings
without engaging in further legal proceedings.

If you take the steps described in this Notice by the deadline below, you may be eligible for a
payment of back wages.

ARE YOU AFFECTED?
Women applicants who applied and were not hired for Operative positions at PCC Airfoils’
Douglas, Georgia location between April 1, 2017 and March 31, 2018 are covered by this

settlement.

WHAT Is THIS SETTLEMENT ABOUT?
The U.S, Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP)

conducted a review of PCC Airfoils® hiring practices during the period of April 1, 2017 and
March 31, 2018. OFCCP is the government agency responsible for enforcing the
nondiscrimination and equal employment opportunity through affirmative action requirements
that apply to federal contractors. OFCCP alleges that PCC Airfoils discriminated against women
in hiring for Operative positions, PCC Airfoils denies those claims. Ultimately, OFCCP and PCC
Airfoils have agreed to resolve the issue through a Conciliation Agreement. A Conciliation
Agreement is a legal document that explains the terms of an agreement between PCC Airfoils
and OFCCP. As a result, affected applicants may be eligible for back pay.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR YOU?
Because you applied for an Operative position during the relevant time frame, and were not

hired, this settlement may provide you with some specific benefits:

(1) You may be eligible to receive a payment of at least § (before adjustments
for taxes and payroll contributions). This amount represents your share of back
wages and other payments PCC Airfoils is making to settle the lawsuit. The f{inal
amount you will receive will be reduced by deductions for items such as income tax
withholding and Social Security contributions.

To get these benefits, you will need to sign the enclosed Interest Form.




Step 1: Please confirm, or provide, the following contact information to process your payment (please PRINT
legibly).

First Name:

Last Name

Any other names you have used;

Bome Phone:

Cell Phone:

Email Address:

O  1confirm that the address on the cover letter is correct.
[0 The address on the cover letter is not correct. My correct address is:

Address:

Please provide your social security number
Your Social Security Number is required in order to process your payment for tax purposes. Youwr Social Security
Number will not be used for any other purpose. :

Notify us at the address below if your address changes, or contact us if you have any questions about this
Interest Form, the notice, or the setflement.

Name

Address

Phone

Email/Web site link

Step 2: Please sign, date, and refurn.

I certify the above as true and cotrect.

Signature Date




Attachment B-2
Interest Form

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE ENCLOSED NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS INTEREST
FORM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING A CLAIM TO BE CONSIDERED FOR
MONEY (BACK WAGES) FROM THE SETTLEMENT

DEADLINE: [INSERT specific date for First or Second Natice deadline]

You may be eligible for a money payment from the settlement, To receive benefits you must complete arnd return this
Interest Form, It must be returned by the deadline listed above to:

[Name and Address and Email)

If you do not submit a completed Interest Form on or before the deadline above, then your claim will not be
on time and you will not receive any money from this,

Enclosed is a pre-addressed envelope you can use or you may email the forms to the email listed above,

vk

This Interest Form will only be used to confirm important information we need in order to ensure you are eligible to
receive money vnder this settlement and process your payment.

NOTE: This notice is only for the person it was sent to and cannot be transferred or used by another person
whao is not part of the settlement.




I declare that I have read this Release and that T have had a full opportunity to consider and
understand its terms and to consult with my advisors and seek legal advice, I further declare that
I have decided of my own free will to sign this Release.

v,

T understand that if I do not sign this Release and return it to the contact listed on the enclosed
Notice fo Affected Class Members, by the deadline listed on the Notice, I will not be entitled to
receive any payment (less deductions required by law) from PCC Airfoils.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this document on this day of
, 2020,

Printed Name -

Signature




Attachment B-3 (Release)

RELEASE OF CLAIMS UNDER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246, AS AMENDED

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE ENCLOSED NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS
RELEASE. YOU MUST RETURN A SIGNED RELEASE TO RECEIVE MONEY FROM THE
SETTLEMENT.

This Release of Claims (Release) under Executive Order 11246, as amended, is a legal
document. The document states that in return for PCC Airfoils LLC (“PCC Airfoils”) paying
you money, you agree that you will not file any lawsuit against PCC Airfoils for allegedly
violating Executive Order 11246, as amended, in connection with its selection procedures for
applicants for Operative positions. It also says that PCC Airfoils does not admit it violated any
laws. This Release says you had sufficient time to look at the document, to talk with others
about the document, including an attorney if you choose, and that no one pressured you into
signing the document, Finally, it says that if you do not sign and return the document by a
certain date, you will not receive any money.

In consideration of payment by PCC Airfoils to me, which I agree is acceptable, 1 agree to the
following; :

L

I hereby waive, release and forever discharge PCC Airfoils, its predecessors, successors,
related entities, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates and organizations, and its and their
shareholders, directors, officers, employecs, agents, successors, and assigns, of and from any
and all actions, causes of action, damages, liabilities, and claims arising out of or actionable
under Executive Order 11246, as amended, which I or my representatives (heirs, executors,
administrators, or assigns) have or may have which relate to my non-selection as an Operative
on the basis of my sex at any time prior to the date of my signature on this Release. By signing
this agreement, I agree that I have been made whole for any claim that could have been
brought under Executive Order 11246, as amended, relating to my non-selection with PCC
Airfoils through the Effective Date of this Release.

IL

I'understand that PCC Airfoils denies that it treated me unlawfully or unfairly in any way and
that PCC Airfoils entered into a Conciliation Agreement with the U.S. Department of Labor,
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) and agreed to make the payment
described above to resolve alleged disparities in hiring and to resolve the matter without further
legal proceedings in the compliance review initiated by OFCCP on July 18, 2018, I further agree
that the payment of the aforesaid sum by PCC Airfoils to me is not to be construed as an
admission of any liability by PCC Airfoils,

IIL




Attachment C- Timeline
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Tnitial Notices Mailed to Affected PCC | 60 days from effective |
Class Members Airfoils date
Non-Response Class Member PCC 105 days from effective
Listing sent to OFCCP Airfoils date
Search for Unfound Class OFCCP | 135 days from effective
Members date
Re-mail Returned Initial Notices to PCC 165 days from effective
any Forwarding Addresses Received Airfoils date
Notice Response Deadline for Class - 30 days from second
Members mailing date
Eligible Class Member List PCC 220 days from effective
Provided to OFCCP Airfoils date
Eligible Class Member List OFCCP | 230 days from effective
Approved by OFCCP date
Disbursement of Monetary i PCC 275 days from effective
Settlement to Class Members Airfoils date
Notification of Undeliverable PCC 305 days from effective
Checks to OFCCP Airfoils date
Second Disbursement of Monetary FCC Parties will confer
Settlement for Any Airfoils within 190 days after
Returned/Uncashed Checks imitial disbursement to

determine whether a
second distribution is
required






